
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 
 

AGENDA 
 

October 15, 2015 
 

  



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
MINUTES SEPTEMBER 29, 2015 .............................................................................................................................. 3 

AGENDA OCTOBER 27, 2015 ................................................................................................................................ 11 

TABLED CASE  1304 RUNNYMEAD AVE SW .......................................................................................................... 13 

QUESTIONNAIRE ..................................................................................................................................................... 14 
LOCATION MAP  1304 RUNNYMEAD AVE SW .......................................................................................................... 15 

CASE NO 1  2015 8TH ST SW .................................................................................................................................. 16 

QUESTIONNAIRE ..................................................................................................................................................... 17 
LOCATION MAP 2015 8TH ST SW .............................................................................................................................. 18 

CASE NO 2  2319 KATHY LN SW ............................................................................................................................ 19 

QUESTIONNAIRE ..................................................................................................................................................... 20 
LOCATION MAP 2319 KATHY LN SW ........................................................................................................................ 21 

CASE NO 3  1429 VERNON ST SW ......................................................................................................................... 22 

QUESTIONNAIRE ..................................................................................................................................................... 23 
LOCATION MAP  1429 VERNON ST SW .................................................................................................................... 24 

CASE NO 4  1205 CONNER ST SE ........................................................................................................................... 25 

SURVEY.................................................................................................................................................................... 26 
LOCATION MAP  1205 CONNER ST SE ...................................................................................................................... 27 

CASE NO 5  1612 MOULTON ST W ........................................................................................................................ 28 

SURVEY WITH PROPOSED DIVIDING LINE ................................................................................................................ 29 
LOCATION MAP  1612 MOULTON ST W ................................................................................................................... 30 

 
  

2 
 



 
MINUTES SEPTEMBER 29, 2015 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Chairman; George Barran, Messrs., Mr. Larry Waye, Mr. Greg 

Dobbs, Mr. Collis Stevenson and Mr. Charles Taylor 
 
SUPERNUMERARIES:  Mr. Thomas Rossi attended the pre-meeting 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:   Mr. Wally Terry, Director 
        …..and Custodian of Records 
        Mr. Herman Marks, City Attorney 
        Mr. Chip Alexander, Asst. City Attorney 
        Mrs. Karen Smith, Planner 
        Mr. Bob Sims, Building Inspector 
        Ms. Judy Bosworth. 
 
 
Chairman, George Barran called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at 
City Hall.  Mr. Bob Sims called the roll.   
 
Mr. Greg Dobbs moved to approve the minutes of the August meeting as printed.  Mr. Collis 
Stevenson seconded the motion.  On a voice vote, the motion carried. 
 
The Board considered the following applications and appeals. 
 
CASE NO 1 
 
Application and appeal of Araceli Castro for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for a lawn care and landscape business at 1610 
Dandridge St SW, property located in a R-2 Residential Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
This case was moved to the end of the docket because no one came forward when called. 
 
CASE NO 2 
 
Application and appeal of Leslie Fenton for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for a private one-on-one tutoring business at 1304 
Runnymead Ave SW, property located in a R-2 Residential Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Larry Waye with a second from Mr. Collis Stevenson to Table this 
request with the consent of the applicant until next month’s meeting so that it may be advertised 
properly as an individual tutoring business and not as an office. 
 
 

3 
 



CASE NO 3 
 
Application and appeal of James A. Yates for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for a programming business at 3505 Chula Vista 
Ridge DR SW, property located in a R-2 Residential Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
Mr. James A. Yates presented this case to the Board.  Mr. Yates stated he would like an 
administrative office for an on-line computer programming business.  Mr. Yates additionally 
stated there would be some UPS deliveries on occasion. 
 
Both Mr. Sims of the Building Department and Mrs. Smith of the Planning Department stated 
they would recommend approval. 
 
Mr. Greg Dobbs moved to approve this home occupation request as submitted.  Mr. Charles 
Taylor seconded the motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
CASE NO 4 
 
Application and appeal of Travis S. Nickerson for a determination as a use permitted on appeal 
as allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for a car transport business at 212 Mark St SW, 
property located in a R-2 Residential Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Travis S. Nickerson presented this case to the Board.  Mr. Nickerson stated he would like to 
have a home occupation for a car transport business.  Mr. Nickerson explained his trailer would 
be kept off-site and he would be dispatched from a central office. 
 
Mr. Sims stated the Building Department would recommend approval with the understanding 
that none of the cars he picked up could be kept at his home. 
 
Mrs. Smith stated the Planning Department would recommend approval. 
 
Mr. Charles Taylor moved to approve this home occupation request as submitted.  Mr. Greg 
Dobbs seconded the motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
CASE NO 5  
 
Application and appeal of Rebecca Upton for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for a cleaning and painting business at 422 Briarwood 
DR SW, property located in a R-2 Residential Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
Ms. Rebecca Upton presented this case to the Board.  Ms. Upton stated she would like a home 
office for a residential cleaning service off-site.  Ms. Upton also stated the owner was aware of 
her request and there would be no employees. 

4 
 



 
Mr. Sims of the Building Department and Mrs. Smith of the Planning Department both stated 
they would recommend approval. 
 
Mr. Greg Dobbs moved to approve this home occupation request as submitted.  Mr. Charles 
Taylor seconded the motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
CASE NO 6 
 
Application and appeal of Karis and Chris Knight from Section 25-144(6) of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an office for a Child Psychiatry Practice at 1808 Eastwood DR SE, property 
located in a PRD-6 Planned Residential Development Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Chris Knight presented this case to the Board.  Mr. Knight explained he and his wife were 
seeking a home office for a Child Psychiatry Practice due to her chronic illness which made it 
very difficult for her to continue going to her office in downtown Decatur. 
 
Mrs. Karen Smith read a prepared statement for Shirley Hammond of 445 Jackson St. SE in 
support of the application.  The statement is being kept as a part of the record along with the 
other written statements delivered to the Board. 
 
Mr. Greg Dobbs asked Mr. Knight if his wife was acting as a medical doctor and could she 
dispense drugs.  Mr. Knight answered in the affirmative. 
 
Mr. Bill East of 1809 Devonshire DR SE stated he had been a resident of that area for 40 years 
and he would be speaking for the neighborhood.  Mr. East explained that while the group 
sympathizes with Dr. Knight’s illness, they are in a residential zoning district therefore, the 
group is opposed to approving her request.  Mr. East also suggested the Board carefully consider 
their request because approval would set a precedence.  Additionally, the patients are not only 
children but adults as well. 
 
Ms. Carolyn Wyers of 1806 Eastwood DR SE stated she had been a resident of that area for 26 
years and a teacher as well.  Ms. Wyers explained the residential area was not created for a 
medical office.  Ms. Wyers stated she had concerns about home security, privacy, safety, 
covenants and the investment in her home. Additionally stating an unstable environment could 
be created by having psychiatric patients come to the home. 
 
Mr. Eric Winkler of 1810 Eastwood DR SE stated his wife was a licensed Social Worker and she 
had concerns about the type patients Dr. Knight would be seeing   Mr. Winkler stated she could 
be seeing patients with schizophrenia or sex offenders that could pose a safety hazard to their 
family.  Additionally, if she is writing prescription, or keeping drug samples at the home there 
could be break-ins to obtain drugs. 
 
Ms. Stephanie Weathers of 2420 Surrey LN SE a member of the home-owners board stated the 
covenants of that area should be enforced; additionally stating it was nothing personal but she 
was opposed to their request. 

5 
 



 
Ms. Jennifer White from Florence stated her son who has high functioning Autism and is a 
patient of Dr. Knight’s.  Ms. White further explained she believed most of her patients fit the 
Autism spectrum.  Ms. White also stated she drives from Florence to Decatur because Dr. Knight 
is the best Psychiatrist in the area. 
 
Ms. Tracy Wyner of 2707 Lexington Ave SW stated Dr. Knight had saved her life because she 
had become depressed and suicidal after her car accident.  Ms. Wyner also stated she still suffers 
from severe anxiety. 
 
Ms. Kathy Watwood of Guntersville, AL stated Dr. Knight goes the extra mile to try and help 
people; she is the only psychiatrist who will take Tri-Care health insurance.  Ms. Watwood 
additionally stated she personally would be more concerned about the people who do not seek 
help, rather than the ones who do. 
 
Ms. Mary Rose of 1706 Eastwood DR SE stated she had been a resident of that area for 27 years 
and felt the integrity of the neighborhood needed to be maintained.  Ms. Rose also stated if this 
request was approved, it would open up avenues for other businesses to come into the 
neighborhood. 
 
Ms. Rebecca Baker of 1418 Regency Blvd. SE stated she had lived there for 20 years.  Ms. 
Baker stated this home office would be located across from an elementary school and there are 
laws and regulations about what type people can come into contact with the school.  Ms. Baker 
questioned if the doctor would be seeing people from the state? 
 
Chairman, George Barran asked Mr. Knight if his wife saw patients that were referred from the 
state?  Mr. Knight replied, “No”.  Further, Mr. Knight replied there were no sex offenders or 
Schizophrenia patients.  However, she does see ADD patients, as well as patients with 
Depression and Autism.  Mr. Knight additionally explained there would be no samples or drugs 
or prescription pads kept at the house.  Mr. Knight stated there would be no danger to the 
neighborhood, and in fact, it would make the neighborhood safer.   
 
Mr. Greg Dobbs inquired about their office downtown and why she could not utilize that office.  
Mr. Knight explained it took her 2 hours to get ready because of her physical condition and it 
was not feasible to maintain two facilities. 
 
Mr. Sims of the Building Department stated this was not a regular medical office, just counseling 
and patients would be coming at different intervals.  Mr. Sims stated he had no problem with it 
but deferred to the Director of the Building Department Mr. WallyTerry. 
 
Mr. Wally Terry stated the Board really needed to consider this closely since a business of this 
type had never been approved in a residential neighborhood; if approved, it would open up the 
way for other medical offices to do the same thing. 
 

6 
 



Ms. Judy Gwen of 2409 Dorchester DR SE stated she had noticed the Knights fixing up the 
outside of the home and wondered if people would be utilizing outside while they wait either for 
their appointment or while a loved one sees the doctor. 
 
Mr. Knight responded by saying they had been fixing up the house and yard in preparation for 
being allowed to have this office at home. 
 
Mrs. Smith stated to Mr. Knight she had noticed he made reference to “our office” during his 
presentation to the Board.  Mrs. Smith stated an administrative office for an attorney was not 
being discussed at this time. Additionally, Mrs. Smith stated that while she sympathizes with the 
Knights struggles, the ordinance was written with certain restrictions for a reason. The Zoning 
Ordinance prohibits medical offices in a residential zoning.  Therefore, the Planning Department 
would recommend Denial. 
 
Mr. Greg Dobbs moved to approve this office request as submitted.  Mr. Larry Waye seconded 
the motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion failed with one in favor and four opposed.  Mr. Collis 
Stevenson voted in favor, while all other voted against. 
 
CASE NO 7 
 
Application and appeal of Gracie Garth for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for commercial cleaning business at 803 Longbow 
DR SW, property located in a R-2 Residential Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
Ms. Gracie Garth presented this case to the Board.  Ms. Garth stated she would like an 
administrative office for a commercial cleaning business.  Ms. Garth also stated she would have 
employees but they would not come to her home. 
 
Mr. Sims stated the Building Department would recommend approval. 
 
Mrs. Smith stated the Planning Department had no comment. 
 
Mr. Larry Waye moved to approve this home occupation request as submitted.  Mr. Charles 
Taylor seconded the motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
CASE NO 8  
 
Application and appeal of John P. Hudson for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for an estate sale company at 4703 Pineywood DR 
SW, property located in a R-2 Residential Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
Mr. John P. Hudson presented this case to the Board.  Mr. Hudson stated he would like an 
administrative office for an estate sale business.  Mr. Hudson also stated there would be no 
employees except his family. 

7 
 



 
Mr. Sims of the Building Department and Mrs. Smith of the Planning Department both stated 
they would recommend approval. 
 
Mr. Greg Dobbs moved to approve this home occupation request as submitted.  Mr. Larry Waye 
seconded the motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
CASE NO 9 
 
Application and appeal of Paul Barker and Janice Morgan for a variance from Section 25-2(1) of 
the Zoning Ordinance in order to locate an accessory structure in the side yard at 4513 Ivy Dale 
RD SE, property located in an AG-1 Agricultural Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Paul Barker and Ms. Janice Morgan presented this case to the Board.  Mr. Barker stated they 
would like a variance to build an accessory structure in the side yard.  Mr. Barker explained they 
had consolidated two lots in order to get enough flat land to build on  Mr. Barker also stated he 
felt they had a hardship due to the topography of his property. 
 
Both Mr. Sims of the Building Department and Mrs. Smith of the Planning Department stated 
they would recommend approval. 
 
Mr. Larry Waye moved to approve this variance request as submitted.  Mr. Greg Dobbs 
seconded the motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
CASE NO 10  
 
Application and appeal of Rick L. Adams for a variance from Section 25-2(1) of the Zoning 
Ordinance in order to locate an accessory structure in the side yard at 3129 Hickory Hills RD SE, 
property located in a R-1 Residential Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Rick L. Adams presented this case to the Board.  Mr. Adams stated he needed a variance in 
order to build a structure in his side yard because he had a pie-shaped lot which made it difficult 
to locate the structure elsewhere on the lot.  Additionally, there are areas with a slope and areas 
with rock making it difficult to build in those locations. 
 
Mr. Sims stated the Building Department would recommend approval. 
 
Mrs. Smith stated the contour of the lot makes is difficult to build in certain areas thereby 
creating a hardship.  Mrs. Smith stated the Planning Department would recommend approval.  
 
Mr. Charles Taylor moved to approve this variance request as submitted.  Mr. Larry Waye 
seconded the motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
 
 
 

8 
 



CASE NO 11  
 
Application and appeal of Ronald Boyd, Jr. for a variance from Section 25-77(d)(2) in order to 
install an attached sign 15 inches above the roof line at 1202 Danville RD SW, property located 
in a B-1 Local Shopping Business Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Garland Hutchinson, representative for Ronald Boyd, presented this case to the Board.  Mr. 
Hutchinson stated he was the leasee of the unit and wanted to be able to have a sign above the 
awning on front of the building.  Mr. Hutchinson stated the sign would be 62 inches long and 20 
inches in height.   
 
Mr. Sims stated there was a problem at this location because several signs had been installed 
without permits and did not comply with the sign ordinance.  Mr. Sims stated the Building 
Department would recommend denial until the owner of the property brings all signs into 
compliance. 
 
Mrs. Smith stated the Planning Department would concur with the Building Department. 
 
Mr. Greg Dobbs moved to approve this sign request as submitted.  Mr. Larry Waye seconded the 
motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
CASE NO 12 
 
Application and appeal of Jackie Letson for a use permitted on appeal to Section 25-110(a) to 
have a temporary seasonal business to sell produce at 214 6th Ave SE, property located in a B-2 
General Business Zoning District. 
 
Mr. Jackie Letson presented this case to the Board.  Mr. Letson stated he was applying for a 
temporary business license to sell home grown produce at the above address. 
 
Mr. Greg Dobbs inquired why he could not utilize the Farmers Market.  Mr. Letson replied they 
will close the market in November and he needed somewhere to sell his produce in the winter 
months. 
 
Chairman, George Barran asked if this was his primary source of income.  Mr. Letson said it 
was. 
 
Mr. Sims stated the Building Department had no comment. 
 
Mrs. Smith stated she believed the Farmers Market was making provisions for Mr. Letson to be 
able to sell on their property in November and December.  Mrs. Smith suggested they sell there 
during those months.  Additionally, Mrs. Smith explained the Farmers Market was working with 
surrounding properties to make bathroom facilities available since the market will be closing 
their facilities. 
 

9 
 



Mr. Charles Taylor moved to approve this request as submitted with the condition Mr. Letson 
sell at the Farmers Market when available; if unavailable he may sell at the advertised address.  
Mr. Collis Stevenson seconded the motion.  On a roll-call vote, the motion carried. 
 
CASE NO 1  
 
Application and appeal of Araceli Castro for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for a lawn care and landscape business at 1610 
Dandridge St SW, property located in a R-2 Residential Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
This case was called again, when no one came forward, the Board voted to dismiss the case.  
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:30 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    _______________________ 
    Chairman, George Barran 

 
  

10 
 



AGENDA OCTOBER 27, 2015 
 
Tabled Case from Last Month’s Meeting: 
 
Application and appeal of Leslie Fenton for a determination as a use permitted on appeal for a 
home occupation as allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Section 25-142(b)(1) as amended 
and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to have an individual tutoring business at 1304 
Runnymead Ave, SW, property located in a R-2 Residential Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
CASE NO 1  
 
Application and appeal of Lamberto B. Rivera for a determination as a use permitted on appeal 
as allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for a photography business at 2015 8th St SW, 
property located in a R-2 Residential Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
CASE NO 2 
 
Application and appeal of Darris Moore for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 
allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for a lawn service at 2319 Kathy Ln SW, property 
located in a R-2 Residential Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
CASE NO 3 
 
Application and appeal of Daniel C. Truitt, Jr., for a determination as a use permitted on appeal 
as allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 
Ordinance to have an administrative office for an on-line computer software business at 1429 
Vernon St SW, property located in a R-1 Residential Single-Family Zoning District. 
 
CASE NO 4 
 
Application and appeal of Kevin Corum for the following variances in order to reconstruct a 
duplex at 1205 Conner ST SE, property located in an R-4 Residential Multi-Family Zoning 
District. 
 

1. A 6 foot side yard setback variance from Section 25-10.11(2)(e) and 
2. A 3,000 square foot lot area variance  from Section 25-10.11(2)(a) 
3. A 4 foot side yard variance from Section 25-14(a) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

11 
 



CASE NO 5 
 
Application and appeal of Carey Wiggins for a variance from Section 25-14 of the Zoning 
Ordinance in order to create two non-conforming lots from one lot at 1612 Moulton ST West, 
property located in a B-2 General Business Zoning District. 

 
 

  

12 
 



 
 
 
 
 

TABLED CASE  1304 RUNNYMEAD AVE SW 
 

13 
 



 
 
 
 
 

QUESTIONNAIRE 
 

14 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCATION MAP  1304 RUNNYMEAD AVE SW 

15 
 



 
 
 
 

CASE NO 1  2015 8TH ST SW 
 

16 
 



 
 
 

QUESTIONNAIRE 
 
 

17 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCATION MAP 2015 8TH ST SW 
 

18 
 



 
 
 
 

CASE NO 2  2319 KATHY LN SW 
 

19 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

QUESTIONNAIRE 

20 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCATION MAP 2319 KATHY LN SW 

21 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

CASE NO 3  1429 VERNON ST SW 
 

22 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

QUESTIONNAIRE 

23 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCATION MAP  1429 VERNON ST SW 
 

24 
 



 
 
 
 
 

CASE NO 4  1205 CONNER ST SE 

25 
 



 
 
 
 

SURVEY 

26 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCATION MAP  1205 CONNER ST SE 
 

27 
 



 
 
 

CASE NO 5  1612 MOULTON ST W 

28 
 



 
 
 
 

SURVEY WITH PROPOSED DIVIDING LINE 

29 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCATION MAP  1612 MOULTON ST W 

30 
 


	AGENDA
	Minutes September 29, 2015
	Agenda October 27, 2015
	tabled CASE  1304 Runnymead Ave SW
	QUESTIONNAIRE
	LOCATION MAP  1304 RUNNYMEAD AVE SW

	case no 1  2015 8th st sw
	QUESTIONNAIRE
	LOCATION MAP 2015 8TH ST SW

	CASE NO 2  2319 KATHY LN SW
	QUESTIONNAIRE
	LOCATION MAP 2319 KATHY LN SW

	CASE NO 3  1429 VERNON ST SW
	QUESTIONNAIRE
	LOCATION MAP  1429 VERNON ST SW

	CASE NO 4  1205 CONNER ST SE
	SURVEY
	LOCATION MAP  1205 CONNER ST SE

	CASE NO 5  1612 MOULTON ST W
	SURVEY WITH PROPOSED DIVIDING LINE
	LOCATION MAP  1612 MOULTON ST W


